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 Independent Auditor’s Report 
 To the Members of HT Music and Entertainment Company Limited 

 Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of HT Music and Entertainment Company Limited (the 
“Company”) which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss 
(including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and 
other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss and other 
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements. 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 



B S R and Associates 

 
Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued) 

 HT Music and Entertainment Company Limited 

Page 2 of 12 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern 
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
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b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the 
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014. 

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 
133 of the Act. 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f. the modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith 
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 
2B(f)] below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure B”. 

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial 
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 32 to the financial statements. 

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses. 

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company. 

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the Note 33(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned 
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(ii) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the Note 33(vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the 
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.   

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, 
contain any material misstatement. 

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned below, 
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the Company has used accounting Softwares for maintaining its books of account, which have a 
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year 
for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective Softwares: 

i. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level to log 
any direct data changes for the accounting software. 

ii. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not available or not enabled at the 
application layer of one of the accounting software used for maintaining the books of account 
relating to revenue. 

iii. In the absence of a Type 2 report in relation to controls at service organisation for accounting 
software used for maintaining the books of account relating to revenue process, which is operated 
by a third-party software service provider, we are unable to comment whether audit trail feature 
of the said software was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the software. 

Further, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with, except 
for (iii) above for which we are unable to comment whether the audit trail feature was tampered 
with. In case of (i) and (ii) above, the question of audit trail feature being tampered with does not 
arise since audit trail (edit log) facility was not available or not enabled. 

A. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act: 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no directors to 
whom remuneration is paid / payable in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are 
required to be commented upon by us. 

 For B S R and Associates 

 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm’s Registration No.:128901W 

  

  

  

 David Jones 

 Partner 

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 098113 

Date: 08 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24098113BKFLXH5498 
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(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not hold any 
intangible assets during the year ended 31 March 2024. Therefore provisions of paragraph 
3(i)(a)(B) of the Order are not applicable to Company. 

(i) (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification 
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in 
a phased manner over a period of three years.  In accordance with this programme, certain 
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of 
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of 
its assets.  No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where 
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the 
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment 
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the 
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property 
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The Company is a service company, primarily rendering radio broadcasting 
services.  Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(a) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits 
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of 
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided 
guarantee or security or granted any advances in nature of loans to companies, firms, limited 
liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company has granted loans to a 
Limited liability partnership during the year in respect of which the requisite information is as 
below. 

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations 
given to us the Company has provided loans as below: 



B S R and Associates 

 

 Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements 
of HT Music and Entertainment Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 
2024 (Continued) 

Page 6 of 12 
 

 

Particulars Loans 

Aggregate amount during the year 

– Others 

  
Rs. 2 Lakhs 

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 

– Others 

  
Nil 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans 
are not prejudicial of the Company’s interest. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of 
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been 
regular. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party 
during the year. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect 
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any 
party during the year. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, in our opinion following instances of loans falling due during the 
year were renewed or extended or settled by fresh loans: 

 

Name of the parties Aggregate amount 
of loans granted 
during the year 

Aggregate overdue 
amount settled by 

renewal or 
extension or by 

fresh loans 
granted to same 

parties 

Percentage of the 
aggregate to the 

total loans granted 
during the year 

HT Content Studio 
LLP 

Rs. 2 Lakhs Rs. 2 Lakhs 100% 

 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the 
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of 
repayment. 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, there are no investments made or provided any guarantee or 
security as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). In 
respect of the loans given by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of Section 185 and 
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) have been complied with. 
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(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from 
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not 
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services 
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and 
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been 
subsumed into GST. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of 
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident 
Fund, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company 
with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on 
account of Duty of Customs and Employees State Insurance 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service 
Tax, Provident Fund, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 
2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax which have 
not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows: 

 

Name of 
the 

statute 

Nature of 
the dues 

Amount 
(Rs. in 
Lakhs) 

Amount 
paid under 
protest (Rs. 

In Lakhs) 

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates 

Forum where 
dispute is 
pending 

CGST Act, 
2017 

Disallowanc
e of Credit 

3.30 1.96 FY 2017-18 The Deputy 
commissioner, 

CGST, Chennai 

 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, 
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any 
lender during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or government or government authority. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
balance sheet of the Company, we report that during the current financial year, the Company 
has not raised term loan. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the 
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been 
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used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as 
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not 
applicable. 

(f) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as 
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(f) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has 
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of 
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year. 

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of their holding company and accordingly the 
requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the 
Company. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on 
the basis of our examination of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties 
are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards. 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, 
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period 
under audit. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors 
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by 
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us by management of the Company, 
the Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 
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2016) does not have more than one CIC (which is not required to be registered with RBI as not 
being Systemically Important CIC) as detailed in note 33(viii) to the financial statements. We 
have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by the management 
is accurate and complete. 

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 184 Lakhs in the current financial year and Rs 
311 Lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination 
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes 
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our 
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the 
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 

 

 For B S R and Associates 

 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm’s Registration No.:128901W 

  

  

  

 David Jones 

 Partner 

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 098113 

Date: 08 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24098113BKFLXH5498 
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Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of HT Music and 
Entertainment Company Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”). 

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 
  
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
  
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
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provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

For B S R and Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm’s Registration No.:128901W 

David Jones 

Partner 

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 098113 

Date: 08 May 2024 ICAI UDIN:24098113BKFLXH5498 
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HT Music and Entertainment Company [imited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 3'-' 2024

1. Corporatelnformation

HT Music & Entertainment company Limited ("HTME or the company") is a Public company

domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956'

The companv is engaged in radio broadcast and all other related activities through its radio

stationoperatingunderthebrandname,Fevergl.gFM,inchennai,managingandorSanizing
events, shows, etc. of various kinds and nature, and derives revenue by organizing such events.

The Company is also involved in creating & releasing originalvideo songs (Non-film music) under

the brand name ..FAB Music Beats,, having content major|y in the Punjabi & devotiona|

categories.

The registered office of the company is located at unit 701 A, 7'h Floor, Tower 2, Indiabulls

Finance Centre, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai - 400013'

lnformation on the related party relationship of the Company is provided in Note 24'

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 are approved for

issueinaccordancewithareso|utionoftheBoardofDirectorsonMayE,2024'

2. Material Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

ThefinanciaIstatementsofthecompanyhavebeenpreparedinaccordancewiththeIndian
Accountingstandards(,|nd-As,)specifiedintheCompanies(|ndianAccountingstandards)Ru|es,
2015(asamended)undersectionl33oftheCompaniesAct2ol3(the,,accountingprincip|es
generally accePted in India").

Theaccountingpo|iciesareapp|iedconsistent|ytoa||theperiodspresentedinthefinanciaI
statements.

The financia| statements have been prepared on a historica| cost basis, except for the fo||owing

assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

.certainfinanciaIassetsandIiabiIitiesaremeasuredatfairVaIue(referaccountingpolicy
regarding financial instruments)

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (lNR), which is also the Company's

functionaIcurrency.AIIamountsdisc|osedinthefinanciaIstatementsandnoteshavebeen
roundedofftothenearest|acsaspertherequirementofScheduIe||l,unlessotherwisestated'

2.2 summary of Material accounting policies

a) current versus non- current classification



HT Music and Entertainment Company Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current

classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

. Exoected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading

. ExDected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a

liabilitv for at least twelve months after the reporting period'

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

. lt is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

. lt is held primarily for the purpose of trading

. lt is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

r There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the rePorting Period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current'

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between on air of advertisement and its realisation in cash

and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b) Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the company at their respective

functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition

However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average approximates

the actual rate at the date of the transaction

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the

functional currencv spot rates of exchange at the reporting date'

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the

company,s monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded

during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as

expenses in the year in which they arise.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions'

foreign currency are



HT Music and Entertainment Company [imited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

c) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives and certain investments at

fair value at each reportinS/ balance sheet date.

Fair vaiue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderlv transaction between market participants at the measurement date The fair value

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the

liabilitv takes olace either:

o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset

or liabilitY

The princioal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company'

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuminS that market participants act

in their economic best interest.

A fair Value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's

ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it

to another market participant.that would use the asset in its highest and best use'

The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements

are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (unadiusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable



HT Music and Entertainment Company Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 3L' 2024

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the

Companv determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-

assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level

of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

d) Revenue recognition and other income

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is

being made.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of

transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation The

transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account

of various discou nts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract'

The Company applies the practical expedient to not to disclose the amount of the remaining

performance obligations for contracts with original expected duration of less than one year.

Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers. The Company has concluded that it is the

principal in a of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue

arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to credit risks'

Goods and Service tax is not received by the Company on its own account Rather' it is the tax

collected on the value of the services by the service provider on behalf of the Sovernment.

Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue

contract asset represents the company's right to consideration in exchange for services that the

company has transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on something other than

the passage of time.

When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required to do

invoicing, the same is presented as Unbilled receivable

A contract liability is recognised if a

earlier) from a customer before the

Company is under an obligation to

payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is

Company transfers the related goods or services and the

provide only the goods or services under the contract'



HT Music and Entertainment Company Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 3L,2024

Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue When the Company performs under the contract

(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Airtime Revenue

Revenue from radio broadcasting is recognized on an accrual basis on the airing of client's

commercials,

FAB Music Revenue

Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis after releasing non-film muSic content on di8ital

platforms such as Youtube, Wynk, Gaana.com, etc.

lnterest income

For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the

effective interest rate (ElR) EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash

payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where

appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortrsed cost of a

financial liability. when calculating the effective interest rate, the company estimates the

expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for

example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected

credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss

el Taxes

Current income tox

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the

period in respect of current tax and deferred tax.

current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in

accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered

from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount

are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date

current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit

or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). current tax items are recognised is

correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management

periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which



HT Music and Entertainment Company Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 3l' 2024

applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where

appropnate.

Appendix c to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes dealing with accounting for uncertainty over income tax

treatments does not have any material impact on financial statements of the Company

Deferred tox

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the

reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences'

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of

unused tax credits and anv unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent

that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the

year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that

have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date'

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reportin8 date and reduced to

the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed

at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future

taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered'

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or

loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in ocl

or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if it has a legally enforceable

right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and

deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the

same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax

liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneouslv, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or

assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

a-li l



HT Music and Entertainment Company Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

GST/ value added tdxes pdid on ocquisition of ossets or on incurting expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST/ volue odded toxes paid, except:

o When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the

taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition

of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

o When receivables and pavables are stated with the amount of sales tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part

of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

f) Property, plant and equiPment

The Company has aPPlied for one

Property, Plant and EquiPment and

the deemed cost under Ind-AS.

time transition option of considering the carrying cost of

Intangible assets on the transition date i.e. April 1, 2015 as

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant

and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition

criteria are met.

Costcomprisesthepurchaseprice,borrowingcosts(ifcapitalizationcriteriaaremet)andany
direct|yattributab|ecostofbringingtheassettoitsworkingconditionfortheintendeduse.Any
trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price'

Recognition:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if' and only

if:

(a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the

entitv; and

(b) the cost ofthe item can be measured reliably'

All other expenses on existlng assets, including day- to- day repair and maintenance expenditure

andcostofreplacingparts,arechargedtotheStatementofProfitandLossfortheperiodduring
which such expenses are incurred

Depreciation methods, estimated useful life and residual value

\ 7--

lz



HT Music and Entertainment Company Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 37' 2024

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as

fo llows:

Type of asset Useful lives estimated bY

management (Years)

Leasehold lmprovement

Plant and Machinery

9 or tenure of lease whichever is

lower
10

Furniture and Fixtures 10

lT Equipment
Office Equipment 5

The Company, based on technical assessment made by the management depreciates certain

assets over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule

ll to the Companies Act, 2013. The management has estimated' supported by technical

assessment, the useful lives of certain plant and machinery as 10 years These useful lives are

lower than those indicated in Schedule ll.

Themanagementbe|ievesthattheseestimatedusefu||ivesarerea|isticandref|ectfair
approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used

Property, Plant and Equipment which are added/disposed off during the year' depreciation is

provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition/deletion'

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is

derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or

disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the

income statement when the asset is derecognised'

subsequentexpenditurecanbecapitaIisedon|yifitisprobab|ethatfutureeconomicbenefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the company and cost of the item can be measured

reliablv.

Expendituredirect|yattributab|etoconstructionactivityiscapita|ized.otherindirectcosts
incurredduringtheconstructionperiodswhicharenotdirect|yattributab|etoconstruction
activitv are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss Reinvested income earned during the

construction period is adjusted against the total of indirect expenditure'

The residual values, useful life and methods of depreciation of property' plant and equipment

are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate'

g) Intangible assets



HT Music and Entertainment Company Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of

intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding

capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in

profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred,

on transition to Ind-As, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its

Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the tndian GAAP and use that

carrying value as the deemed cost of the Intangible assets

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite'

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for

impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The

amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life

are reviewed at least at the end of each reportinS period. changes in the expected useful life or

the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are

considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as

changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives

is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment

annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life

is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. lf

not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis'

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal(i.e., at the date the recipient obtains conirol)

or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss

arising upon de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal

proceedsandthecarryingamountoftheasset}isinc|udedinthestatementofprofitor|oss.

Intangible assets are amortized on strai8ht line basis using the estimated useful life as follows:

Intangible Asset Useful life (in years)

License Fees {One time entry fee) .tJ

The above periods also represent

respective intangible assets.

the management estimated economic useful life of the



HT Music and Entertainment Company Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised
embodied in the specific asset to which

loss as incurred.

h) Leases

only when it increases the tuture economic benefits

it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration

compdny os o lessee

The company recognises right-of-use asset representing its riSht to use the underlying asset for

the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the ri8ht-of-use asset measured at

inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted

for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives

received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the

lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site

on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any

accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any

remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straiSht-

line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-

of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis

as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment

whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable'

lmpairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss'

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are

not oaid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the

interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. lf that rate cannot be

readiiv determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate The lease payments shall

include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees' exercise price of a

purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments

ofpena|tiesforterminatingthe|ease,ifthe|easetermref|ectsthelesseeexercisinganoptionto
terminate the lease. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased

to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. The lease liability

is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease

liabilitv, reducing the carrylng amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the

carryingamounttoreflectanyreassessmentor|easemodificationsortoref|ectrevisedin-
substance fixed lease payments. The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of

|easeliabiIityduetomodificationasanadjustmenttotheright-of-useassetandstatementof
profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification Where the carrying amount of the

risht-of-useassetisreducedtozeroandthereisafurtherreductioninthemeasurementofthe
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lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in

statement of profit and loss.

The Companv has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term leases of all

assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of

low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a practical expedient a lessee (the company) has elected, by class of underlying asset, not to

separate lease components from any associated non-lease components. A lessee (the company)

accounts for the lease component and the associated non-lease components aS a single lease

comDonent.

Compony os o lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating

lease or a finance lease. The company recognises lease payments received under operating

leases as income on a straight- line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance leaSe, finance

income is recognised over the leaSe term based On a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate

of return on the lessor's net investment in the lease

i) lmpairment of non-financial assets

For assets with definite useful life, the Company assesses, at each reporting date'

whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. lf any indication exists, or

when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimates the asset's

recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-

generating unit,s (cGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount

is determined for an individual asset, Unless the asset does not Senerate cash inflows that are

largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets When the carrying amount

of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is

written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of

money and the risks specific to the asset. In determinin8 fair value less costs of disposal, recent

market transactions are taken into account. lf no such transactions can be identified, an

appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,

quoted share prices for publicly traded Company's or other available fair value indicators'
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The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,

which are prepared separately for each of the company's cGUs to which the individual assets

are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For

|ongerperiods,a|ong-termgrowthrateisca|cu|atedandapp|iedtoprojectfuturecashf|ows
after the fifth vear. To estimate cash flow proiections beyond periods covered by the most

recent budgets/forecasts, the company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a

steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified

|nanycase,thisgrowthratedoesnotexceedthe|on8-termaveragegrowthrateforthe
products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in

which the asset is used.

lmpairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss'

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that

previously recognised impairment losses no lonSer exist or have decreased. lf such indication

exists, the company estimates the asset's or cGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised

impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to

determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised The

reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable

amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined' net of

deDreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years' Such reversal

is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,

in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase'

i) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as

a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic

benefitswilIberequiredtosett|etheob|igationandare|iab|eestimatecanbemadeofthe
amount of the obligation' When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be

reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a

separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain The expense relating to a

provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement'

lf the effect of the time vatue of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current

pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability' When discounting

isused,theincreaseintheprovisionduetothepassageoftimeisrecognisedasafinancecost'

k) EmPloyee benefits

short term employee benefits and defined contribution plans:
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All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are

classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc. are

recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the

related service.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The

Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The

Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when

an employee renders the related service. lf the contribution payable to the scheme for service

received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid.

lf the contribution alreadv oaid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the

balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will

lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are recognized immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCt in the
period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
o The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

. The date that the Company recognises related restructuring cost

Interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liabilitv.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as

expense in the Statement of orofit and loss:

o Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses

curtailments and non-routine settlements: and

. Interest expense

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the group before the
normal retirement date. The Group recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the
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following dates: (a) when the group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b)

when the Group recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37 and

involves the payment of terminations benefits. Benefits falling due more than L2 months after

the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

Compensated Absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as

short term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the

additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has

accumulated at the reporting date.

The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months,

as long- term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long- term compensated

absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit

method at the period end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of

Drofit and loss and are not deferred, The company presents the leave as a current liability in the

balance sheet to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12

months after the reporting date. where company has the unconditional legal and contractual

right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 1'2 months, the same is presented as non-

current lia bilitY.

l) Financialinstruments

A financial instrument rs any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a

financial liability or equity instrument of another entity

Financial assets

I niti ol recog n ition ond m eosu reme nt

All financial assets are recogntsed initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the

acouisition of the financial asset.

Subse que nt m edsu re m e nt

For purposes of subsequent measurement, Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost'

A'debt instrument'is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
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a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting

contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest (sPPl) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest rate (ElR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into

account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an inteSral part of the

EtR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising

from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade

and other receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 7.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar

financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the company's balance sheet)

when:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

. The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has

assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a

third party under a 'pass-through' arrangemenu and either (a) the Company has

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has

neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but

has transferred control ofthe asset.

WhentheCompanyhastransferreditsrightstoreceivecashf|owsfromanassetorhasentered
into a pass-througn arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and

rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks

and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to

recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company continuing involvement ln that

case, the Company also recognises an associated liability The transferred asset and the

associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obli8ations that the

Company has retained.

continuing involvement that takes the form of a Suarantee over the transferred asset is

measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Company could be required to repay'

lmoairment of financial assets
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ln accordance with lnd-As 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit

risk exposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g, loans,

debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that

result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind-AS LL5 (referred to as'contractual

revenue receivables' in these financial statements).

TheCompanvfollows'simplifiedapproach'forrecognitionofimpairmentlossallowanceon:

Trade recelvables or contract revenue receivables; and

Theapp|icationofsimp|ifiedapproachdoesnotrequirethecompanytotrackchangesincredit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting

date, riSht from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure' the Company

determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial

recognition. lf credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for

impairment |oss' However, if credit risk has increased significant|y, Iifetime EcL is used. |f, in a

subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising

impairment loss allowance based on 12-month EcL'

LifetimeEcLaretheexpectedcredit|ossesresu|tingfroma||possib|edefau|teventsoverthe
exoected|ifeofafinancia|instrument.Thel2-monthEcLisaportionofthe|ifetimeECLwhich
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date'

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in

accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i'e ' all

cash shortfalls), discounted at the original ElR When estimating the cash flows' an entity is

reouired to consider:

All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and

similar options) over the exPected life of the financial instrument However' In rare cases

when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the

entitv is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

Cashflowsfromthesa|eofco||atera|he|dorothercreditenhancementsthatareintegralto

b)

the contractual terms
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As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss

allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically

observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for

forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are

updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as

income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head

,other exoenses'in the p&1. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is

described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease

receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of

those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount' Until the

asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the

gross carrying amount. For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company

combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the

objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk

to be identified on a timelY basis

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)financial assets'

i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination

Financial liabilities

t n itia I reco g nition dnd m eosu re me nt

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate All financial liabilities are

recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of and payables' net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities mainly include trade and other payables'

Subse que nt m e asure me nt

Trade and other pavables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

De-recognition
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A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled or expires. When an existing financiat liability is replaced by another from the same

lender on substantiallV different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially

modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original

liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts

ls recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

OIf setting of f i n a ncio I i nstru me nts

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance

sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is

an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

m) Cash and cash equivalents

cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-

term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subiect to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and

short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are

considered an integral part of the company's cash management. cash flows from operating

activities are being prepared as per the Indirect method mentioned in Ind AS 7

n) Contingentliabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be

confirmed bV the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond

the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not

orobable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent

liabilitv also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized

because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability

but discloses its existence in the financial statements. Contingent assets are only disclosed when

it is Drobable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity'

o) Earning per share

Basic Eps amounts are catcutated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity

ho|dersofthecompanybytheweightedaveragenumberofEquitysharesoutstandingduring
the year.
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Diluted eornings per shore

Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per

share to take into account

- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive

potential equity shares, and

- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding

assuming the conversion of all dilutive potentialequity shares'

p) Measurement of EBITDA

The Companv has elected to present earnings before finance costs, tax, depreciation and

amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The

CompanymeasuresEB|TDAonthefaceofprofit/(|oss)fromcontinuinSoperations'Inthe
measurement,thecompanydoesnotincludedepreciationandamortizationexpense,finance
costs and tax exPense

2,3 Significant accounting iudgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make

judgments,estimatesandassumptionsthataffectthereportedamountsofrevenues,expenses,
assetsandIiabiIities,andtheaccompanyingdisc|osures,andthedisc|osureofcontingent
liabilities. uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that

require a material adiustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future

oe riod s.

The areas involvinB critical estimates are as below:

Prcpe,ty, Pldnt & EquiPment

The company, based on technical assessment made by the management depreciates certain

assets over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule

lltotheCompaniesAct,2Ol3.Themanagementhasestimated'supportedbytechnical
assessment, the useful lives of certain plant and machinery as l0 years These useful lives are

lower than those indicated in schedule ll. The management believes that these estimated useful

Iivesarerealisticandref|ectfairapproximationoftheperiodoverwhichtheassetsareIike|yto
be used.

Defined benefit plons

These include the determination of the

rates. Due to the complexities involved

benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
reviewed at each rePorting date.

discount rate, future salary increases and mortality

in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined

changes In these assumptions. All assumptions are
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The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and

the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An

actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual

develooments in the future.

Theparametermostsubjecttochangeisthediscountrate.Indeterminingtheappropriate
discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of

government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit

obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries- Those

mortaIitytab|estendtochangeon|yatintervaIinresponsetodemographicchanges.Future
salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the

respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 23'

tmpdirment of Iinancidl ossets

Theimpairmentprovisionsforfinancia|assetsarebasedonassumptionsaboutriskofdefau|t
and expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and

selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history' existing

market ionditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

The areas involving critical iudgement are as below:

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax

laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business

relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements,

differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to

such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already

recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of

such orovisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax assessments and

differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax

authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on

the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile ofthe Companies.

Deferred taX assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that

taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,

based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax

plan ning strategies.

Fdir vdlue medsurcment ol linonciol instruments
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When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet

cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using

valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from

observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is

required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity

risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the

reoorted fair value of financial instruments. See Note 27 for further disclosures.

lmpdirment ol non- financiol dssets

The companv assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may

be impaired. lf any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,

the companv estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the

higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. lt is determined

for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely

independent of those from other assets or group of assets Where the carrying amount of an

asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written

down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are

discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. ln determining fair

value less costs of disposal, recent markets transactions are taken into account. lf no such

transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are

corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or

other available fair value indicators.

Determining the ledse term ol contrdcts with renewol dnd teminotion options - ds lessee

The company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with

any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised,

or anv periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be

exercised.

The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not

to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors

that create an economic incenttve for it to exercise either the renewal or termination After the

commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or

changeincircumstancesthatiswithinitscontro|andaffectsitsabi|itytoexerciseornotto
exercise the option to renew or to termlnate.

The periods covered bY termination options are included as part of the lease term only when

thev are reasonably certain not to be exercised'

For further details about leases, refer to accounting policy on leases and Note 28A.



HTMuri. and Entanainm.nt Cofioanv tlmiied
iotes to flnaftirl rtetsnantt lor the yetr enaled 3lst Matlh 2024

Note 3 r Property, pltrlt and equlpment

P6nkula.'

tu.t aprll01,2022
Addltions
Lesr : Disposk/ edjustments

As at M.tth 31,2023

less : oispo3als/ adlustments

Ar at March 31,2024

Accumulated ocpr€.iatlon/
lmgahmenl
A!.t Mar.h 31,20U
Charge for the year

Reversal o{ lmapirm€nl dudot the

Ye.r (retur nole belowlr"
Less : Dispotals/ adiultmeolq
Ar.l M.rch 11,2021
Cherge forthe year

Less : DisPosaJs/ adiustm€nts

Asat M.Gh 11,2024

Nat block

As3t M.rci tl,1024
As at M.rch 31,2023

llNRln Lrkhsl
Pl.ntand OftEe Total

M.rhlnery €qulpm€nt
lmprovementto

Le.rehold
Ptambes

5 204

s 204
2

5

5 101

45 255

46 2ss
d5
49

46 252

u2{t
(26'

44 275

28
49

41 225

3 191

(26)

6

5

5 178

23

27

27

E

.".addltlona: Intormatlon lor whkh lmp.lrmett reveftal he, been r€cognlsed durlnty€ar€nd€d Match 31'

1023:
1.NBlure of Assels : Plant & Machinerv

2. Amount of lnpakment Reversal i 26 (lNn in bkhs)

3 R€asonol revelJel :mpalrment : on account of ohrsrcal v€rrfrcatron

\\
\z

-/n'/L\ "/

,

0

f,



HT Mu!i( rnd Entertal|]manl Company Llrnltad
Noles to li ancial sta tem. nts lor the yearended 31rt March 2024

Iot a :odEr lltritbl $6.tt

Other fine ncial a siets {at amortised costl
,epotl5 wlth onglna .nalutily of rnore than l yrar lheld as secur tyl'
Orher r€ceivab es ( ncl!5es rece vables from re ated prilies lR 15 Lal(h5

(prevlous ycar INR 14 bkh5)l8efe. rJote 24Al-!

lotal othar f,naia:d asspB
Cwtefil
i{€nri/r?ent
' Rrpr,"lcnls dcpos rs !ledEEd w th brnk anC ield as mirS I monay

sreak up ot llnanciala$ets (arried at arnortrsed .ost

Ar at 31sl March
2024

{|r,{R ln l-ekh:}

192

15

,\5 rt 3Lrt Mrt}
zo2t

lll{8 ln r: $ls)

1u6

?6

' zze
14

2rt

2-l

zo7
27

Paniculat'

rr3!e reco,vables (tlefer Note 0
arsh .nd cds r ei!ivale,rt! {Relcr Nolc 7;1 & 7B)

Clheri na.c. assets lBeler f./ctc 4)

Totd fuand.l erset €rnhd !! amo.tkd rott

Ar at ltsl itarah
l014

z1z

55

234

2/fi4

ar.t 31,t Marah

az3

2l!
33

226
I 112

2SA2
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Ht Musia and Entertelnm€nt Company LlmJted

Notes to finan(ial statements for the year ended Matah 31, 2024

As at
Mar(h 3li 2023

{lNR In LEkhs}

3

l0
3t

as at

Mar(h 31, 2024

{lNR In lrkhr}

34

14

r,931
toa%

turt
Msr(h 11, 2024

(lNn h kkhs)
5

50

100

A! rt
March 31, 2023
(lNR in l.thrl

1,937

1,9_37

L,9!7
1,9f,7

sPcured, considered Sood

Unlecured considered good lat amortised cost):

-lnler'co.porate deposits to related pa(ies {Refer Note 24A, 29 and 321

Loans Receivable! which have siEniflcant increase ln credil risk

Loans Receivables - credii impaired

Total

Allowances for bad and doublfulloans

Lcrns or alvance5 Sranfed to ploff]alcr5, directo!5, KMP5 and rtlatcd pirrtie5

Aggregate anro!n'- of oani/ advancet in iilu.e of loJnt:

- riepry.rb:e on de4rand (Al Irefer note 29

ABreemtnt doL's no1 5peci6/ anv terms or perron o{ repavmenl 1B)

ioral (AlB)

Per.cn!a3€ of loan9/adva.cet ir fature gtloans to the lctal isans

Note 9 : Other current assets

Panlculars

Prepard expenscs {(after offtetting ler!e Iab I lV of JNR 37 Lilh5 lPrevrous /eJr

l,larch '11,2023: INR 30 La.lnrJl

Brl;ircpwith GDvernmenlr!!hor'lies
CSR pre 5penr (refer rote 31i'
Total
" lNq c,: than 50.C00/_ ha5 been rounded off to 

'\lll

As at
M6rch 31, I013

(lNR ln takhsl

2ltl

2,172

2,172

2,110

2,110

100%

As 6t
Maich 31, 2023

tlllB ln laltEl
11.

6

58

6">\\4\
lfr

4t
t1

/6;
sY
Fl
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HT Mudc and Entertalnment Company Limit€d
Not€r to fln3nciat st rtements for the vear €nded lltt M.rch 2024

Note 11 : Other equity

Parilcukai

Torsl

Partlcul'ft

Ma.ch 31,2024 M.r€h 31, 20€
(lNR ln brhrl (:Nn !t kktttl

(1,c/-e) (961 |

(1,otsl (e611

Ar rt AflU 01, 2022
Nct os5 for the year

Add rtems of otier comprehenr:v€ ncome iecognised drftctly in retair.d eatning5

- Rpmea!!re|Ient of the celined b€oelits plan, net cr lax

A! ar M.rah 11,
Net os5 for ihe year

Add: temt cf other compreh€ns ve lncome recognit€d d rectly i. 
'etaired 

earnlngl

- Remeas!rement of the de{,ned b€nef t! plan. net ,f tax'

As at March tl, at2a
I tNR 15s rhan 50,C00/ her becn f.,!ndcd cffro r.Jil

[t{R In trth!)
(5r91

{283)

1

ls6ll
{rr 8)

t1,079l



HTMurlc add €ot€atalnftrrt Comprry Unlted
Not.. to flnan.ial rt.t.mcnB for th€vG.r end.d !lit M.Eh 20t4

[ota 12:Tr.d. oEvabl.s

Aliounrpayzbleto uedilDrs othet than oin (o enterp'rse and

I.ade payablesto -e ared paries{8€ler Nole 24Al

Olh!. lh.n mhro €nterPrke and sn all.nterFti5!3 lB)
Toral{A+B)
cunlhl

i.n 5 o.o ouoi5) t 'e ao :ve l nJ.r.d. l rb l':re\

'Tr.de q3yabhs.re uonjnterelt bea.int and.re notmally settred In the ranEe ol0 to 90 daYt

for €xplr.ationr on the compmiet credirrsl man a8ene nt processet, reler Nole 26

rhere are no micro, smal: ind d€diun €nte.pris€3, io whom the .onrpany oNes dues, *h ch ar€ o!lstanding trr
rnor€ than a5 davr'credrt Defiod !s at the end o{ vear The information ds requrred (o be drsc osed in r€i.tion lo

mrcro, srtlall and medi!m cnterp.is€s hat heen dete.hin€d !o rhc crtcnt su.h oarties have been idehtaned on rhe

:l l9
185 199

190 163

190 163

prlncipal amourt renalning unpnrd toinYsupp'er ar ellne end

lnrer€rt du€ on princlpal efiolnt renaininS unpard to

a!.!the- end ol rheyear
,mount of lnEreir pard bv rh€ Company in terms ol lectron

the - - Mi.ro, Snatl 3nd M€dium fnle pri5es oevelopment a(t,

IMSMTD Actl,3lont w,lh tie ahounl ol ih. paYhenl iade
eLipplier beyond the aPpoinled day durint lhe yeaf

ahount .t Iniircsr due a.d pay?ble fDr the Per od of delav in

n3lins payment lwh ch have bc.n paid but btvohd

arpoinled day dlint th€ ycer) blt without addlnt ihe

arrount cf inter€tt 6.rrucd rnd remainint unpeid at th€ end

dmount ol lur$!r Lnr€fert femslnlnS due ind pavahle elen
- - su.ceed:ng years, unil su€h d.tc when ihe rnt€rest duet

a'e a.iuallv Daid to ihe tma I enterg.ise, for the purpose

a5 a deducrible etp€ndr:ure !nder tl'e MSME0 a.l

r Pay.th. .rhr ..h.dul. .t oh Maldt 31 2q!4 (r ! r'r q!@l-
outrt ndlnr fo. foltowin! D.'lod! from tl!44j9!!*

UnbflH llot orr. ltB illan I t-z y..n :.3 t .rl U6ra ti.n 3

IJIM5ME 5 5

16 33 1) 3l 135

6f 21 t3 t I r9D

T.rd. P.yrbl.5 .8inr tthtdulc .r o' Mrrd' l!/ql- llt{R In L.th5)
oigt nal.r lot tolto*rnr p.tlodt 69Erhcducdotc

Unblllrd tld Due t!!r thln t l-2 yEa6 2-l y.t.!

67 20 65 6 159

Dis!!ted ducs-MSME

6' l'l 65



t nlcvrr r.ialaC o.vdole
Tot. I tlnanci.l lkrbllltilt rrrited 3r . monhld to5t

Iota no As al Astt
M€rch 31, Mllth 51'

lltii lnLqlhsl llNE In Larntl
12 l9t 163

13A 5 \2
tgs t15

l16
1a 20

Note 13 D: Provitlons

rr.' ) cn kx reiv. D.' c"l:
?,csrr:. ror X'aru IV

To1,3l

Nore 14 : othcr curent liabilLties

Pgrtlculitj

Total

At a! Ar rt
Ma.ch tl" Mar.h 11,

{rr'rR in t khr) lll'lR In l..Lhsl

46

2

2

lft!8 rr La*hsl
416

416

32
3t4

9
lftlz

u EN7

Asat As.t
MEr.h 3:l, Mtr(h 31,

{rl.lR in ta}hr} {lNR ir takhtl
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'ria 

md EnLriahnarlt Co|DDaiv l,ln*ad
et|a ro flnar|.ltl it xitanE for lha V€|f sdrd lllt rtr'th

o|. ut l Ral.r||t ftg|n olatadottt

Oih€r op€ratlnS tevenua j

"i!ven!e lr,om Opc€llond.

tSta 16 l (tther Inacot

krtt]lrr hcgr! oo E A b.sl
- grnl depostts
- Loan to rebred P.4€5 {e{er rEle 24A)

- Interei on income tax relund
Oth.r !on. op.r.Ft [Eon.
l.fra4.uctrrc suppon scrtlc.i (sertll glven (t€{al IFte 24a)

U ftglOdrng of dlscourt on .ky depolit

ifvlnal ot linptlnnent of prop€dY, plair .nd eqdpment (.efat note 3l

!lrbll ,!o-loqc( requlrEq wrM€n batt
Net 8? ! on 6Bpo5.l of ptqxrw, plant aqt .qulp.l|e.rt

37

100

I

1

Sslarl€., wagd lnd bonu3

coitrlDutlon to provldait and otherfunda{reler not€ 231

'i
1

-Wrlta bacl ot Old CrEtome. Crcdit Balalx!5

Lorr 17 :€|nFF b.n.fiG aloe|ll.

flotr 16 r OrPr.cbdon and mErttsrdon ar9cnla

txprcaiatlon oI tan8ible ess€ts (refer note 3l

\

#

& Ei/

o11

fr
84



Bt}|rl|.l tutr|t. Cq|s..rf thld
1{oor lo ft||nd.l rnbndr! td rh. Y.|r ||d.d |tdt fi!" fOza

tlota 19 ! Fi||arra cootl

,- Pou!. ard fi+l
I Adv.rtllrB dld el.t Prornodon

(refer not! 28A)

) 2. ,3-

?q.'!. i.d t+.1-. . I 44 'tJ
Adv.rrllt dld el.r pforndon | 6i 2ls 

.

(refdnot 2sal- I IIRrt,ri'dEi* t i !
rianrance 2 3

.tJ

Reparrs and ma'nrcnancej
- Pllaland machinery 12- Pl!aland machinery

',7- Cther9

Tftve lrnt rnd convcyan.e :' 
t:

c,mrnl4ltEo.o co6E , . 1-l :
r.{.t ridft;ionrl f.tr 62 , n
.Efirl1i i ,on"' f 

,qf". ("1 !qr-,) ,, 11 liil6il;;;,fi i;;,i;;d F5 to rur.t rt e.nb! r esL*hr 26 3r

'brwlous ye.r lNn $ L.$El (Re'a. Note 244)ll
ioss allowancefor douMuldebts (refer (b) b€low)Loss alloi,ance lar doubtiul deDts lrer€r(ol D€rowl

Subtcription -:

10

m: o|h.r.rydra



Hf Mn lc a||d Ent rt l l|ari CornFnt tinltd
ii io fnanaltl abtedartt loa 0ta Yaar andad lltt rrah 20zrl

oL ll : E rn&qr pcf.haE lEpt

Saalc aamln8a pEr share aarounis are srlcul.t€d by dlvldlnS tha lo$ tor the yeer rttrbuablo to cqulty hoH€6 by the wel8hltd

avlntte numhr of €Qrrity rhaaaa orffiandh! dutlrU the ]"a..
Dllutld aamk[t pe. ah.ra a]nouds ft cahuLtld ht dMditu th€ Ptofrt $ttlbutabh io rqultv holdlG by the s,eBlried at€a{e
numbaa of.qulty shrEs ouBtardtq durtng th. yaer dus th€ rvelSht d werage nurnbar of Equlty shtras that rvovld ba lsruad

on conl/ltrbn of. ttte dllutn/e pot€ntlel equlty ahares hto quw shateB.

The folbr{l||t ,efl€att tha InEome and ahar. d-tr |sad h tha bask and dllur€d e.mltu' pet that! computatlont:

ilot 12 rlnaDnE E
tha rnalor aon|gomnlc ot lnaona tar apanrt tor rha tatr addad ilard! 3l, lol4 aid ilarch l1, 20Ul lrt I

$ar.mad ot pr!fil.rd 163 :

OCl..tlbn:
o.iencd tar retltad to ltlms ruaolfllsed In OO dutlng h thc vlar I

ocn tbn of tar arpcn{ a.d l|ic arcoundt| Profli nuldpthd by Indl''r dom"dc t€r nb lbr M"th lt 2021 dtd

M.nh 3L 2013:

oatanad tar
oiJr6r-po..,rar.|*r,onu..dtdht...ndorur.dtd.|cdlbfo.rh|dtnodd..rdEr.r..tbr..orrb.dIn
dia b.Ld dEtt d an 3l xrfdr 202a.rt 6 blhtrt:

dena{ aar Ass€15'
- cn CarrY forwards lusjness loes which are erpecled !o etprt€ In--

Ff 24-2s
FY 25-26

9a
124

16S

E1

ot r€asonablc c€rtalttY, Conrpany not r€co9ntsad tar tsets,
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HT Music and E ertalnment Company Limited
Notes to thancial statemenlr for th€ yea. ended 31tt March 2024

G ratLiity
I otel
Culr€nt
Non.ruftent

45
45

33

The Company has a defined benefit Bratu:tV plan. Every employee who has completed five yeaG or more of

services Bets a gratuity on separation at 15 days salary (la5t drawn salary) for each completed year of

se.vice. The provision for gratuity is made based on actuarial valuation done by independent valuer.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recoBnised in the statement ol

profit or loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for lhe respective plansi

GratuiW

Changes in the delined b€nefit oblitation as.t March 31, 2024:

The princlpal assumptiods used in determining gratuity obliBat;on for the companv'5 plans ale shown belowl

particutars March 31,2024 March 51,1013

DrscoLrnt.are 11O% 7 40Y'

Salary growth ra'ie 5% 5%

Withdrawal rate

Up to 30 years 36% 36%

11- 44 years 16% 35/'

Above 44 years 36Y' 16%

(.x
tz,=



HT Muslc and Enterteinment company Llmited
Notes to financial Jtatements for the Vear ended lvla.ch 31, 2024

A quantitatlve rnsltlvlty analysls for 3ltniticant assumptlon i9 a5 shown belovr,:

3L,2423

lo9! -q$ .b9!r gt jl S_]jCa !!9 r!1!a-s9)
llNR in takhs)

The s€nsitivity analvsis above have been cletermined based On a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit

obli8ation as a result of aeasonable changes in key assumptioos occurring at the end of the reporting period-

3

3

2

W--eiEhted average dutation- -

B, Defn€d contlibution Plan

Ma.ch 31,2024 March 31,2023

3 Years 2 Years

(lNR in Lakhsl

31, 2023

4

4
lcontribution to provid ther funds

CharBdto tt*bmold snd lo$.

7l
7

c. Leave encashment (untunded)

ThecompanyrecognisestheIeaveencashmentexpensesinthestatementofprofitand|o55basedonactuariaIvaIUation.
The expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the leave encashment liability at the beginning and at the

end of the Year : (tNR In takhsl

{lNR in lakhs}

Ma.ch 31, 2023

Dearease IncreSse

Cy,--("-reRa5/ \z

#;
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HT Muilc and Entertalnmert CompanV Limlted
Notes to flnancial rtatements for the yea. ended 31st Marah 2024

Note 25 :5e8ment lRtoJmalio.r
In accordance with Ind AS-108'Operating SeSrnents', the Company' operating segment i9 Media and lntertainment and il has no other
primary reportable segments. Considering th€ nature of operations and the manner in whrch the ch:ef operat;ng decision maker of the

Company reviews the operating results) the Company has concluded that there i5 only one operat;n8 segmert. Accordingly, the se8mel)L

revenu€, segment results/ totat carrying amount of segment assels and se8ment liabihlies, total cost incurrcd to ncquire seSment assets

and total amount of charge for depreciaton duflng the yeat are as refte(ted in the Financial Statements a5 at and for the year ended

March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 The geographrcal revenue i5 allocated based on the location ofthe cu5tomers The Company primarily

caters tothe domestic market and hence h has been considered as to be operating in a sln8lp Seo8raphical location

Infolmation ebout major customer3:

There are no customer represenB 10% or more of the Company's total revenue during tl^re Ycar cnded March 31, 2024, one cuslomer

repaesents 10% or r.ore of the Company's total revenue durln8 the lear ended March 31, 2023, which is 14% of total revenue INR 56

Lakhs

<b
/=

/9
e



Hl Muslc.nd Ent.(ahment Company Umited
Not$ to fidenclsl stataflents tor th€ vear erded 3ld Mar.h 2021

Note 26: Flnancl.lrhl m.n.gement oblecllver BBd polkle5

The Companys pflncipal financial labilities, comp ses trade and other paYables, The rn.ln purPose of thete fi.encial

lrabrlitie5 is to frnance the company's operalloni. The Company! princlpal financial assets include loan5 given, vad€ and

other receivables, and cash and cash equivaleots that il deriv€s djrecily hom operations.

{tr)M.rk€r rltk
Marker rirt is the rbt that ihe fairv.lue ol fut!re cash flows of a fhancirllnstrument wiilfluctuale becalse of chenges in

marker 9rite5, Market riskcomprises two tYpes of isk:interesr late tiskand currencY r5k

lrl Inlerestrate rlsk
Interest ral€ risl is the ri5k lhar the ialr value or lutlre calh flows of a fina.':cial instruhent will fluctuale blcause ot

charSes ln market interest rates, on account ol abgence ot borrowings, the company does not have e:posuse to int€re9t

rat€ (sk,

(b) Forclgn curency tbl
Fo.er3n currency risk ariserdire io lhe fluduarions in {oreitn curlencY erchange .at€s The companY's erpolure to lhe risk

of chanSes in foreiSn exchange rales felEtes to the company! operating activilie' lwhcn revenue or e)lpense is

denomi.ated in a fo.el8n currency) rs f,otmaterial

(21 Cr€dit .iil
credlt rtek is th€ riet that counrerparty will not rncet its obligaticn5 undcr a fisancial instrument ot custcme. conttacr.

leedin! to a financial loss. The Comp€nY is expos€d to credii nlk irom iis operating 
'ctivitles 

(primarilv trade receivables)

and from lts flnrnclng actllitres, including deposlls with banks and ICD glven to related parties

{alTrade re(Glvabter, Lotnr glv€n and Oth6r tinancialalscts at!mo'tl'€d cott

Animpai|mentan'lYsisisp€rforn]edaleech|eoort|ntdat€onanind|V|drjalbasisfornajo|clienlrThemar]mum
exoorure to credir rlsk ar rhe reportinE dale is the aarryln8 value ot each clas5 o, financ el as5€ts di.rlosed ir Note 4 Note

6 and Note 8, The company doeJ nct hold collateralas securily'

Thccornoaivevatuatesth€concetlrationo'riskwirhresPe.ltotladerece|vablesas|oh/,a9|tscullomersare|ocaredjn
severa I jurisdicrlon5 and lndustties and op€.ate in iarSely indepcnleal markets

The CompaoY based on internalasseigment which i5 driven bY lhe hlsto/itil €r p€ rience/ tu (eni facts available in 
'elat 

on

to defauit ano dclays in coll€ction lhereof, the.redlt risk for (:de receivables is cots dered low Rofer Note 20 Jor

movement In expected credit lots allowance of lrale 'eceivab'es

(bl Flo.ncial instrumonF ard c.th deposlB

ir"ait.trl fro- balanc€s wth banks and financaal institutlont is manaSed bv the Co'npan{! treeslly department In

eccordance with the Company! policY- Inveslmentt of surplus funds are made a5 per Euicelinos and w{hin limltt

approved by goard of Directors Boa.d of Drtecto's/ Mana8eme't reviews and update guiddines time to t me as per

lequ'ernent.Theguide|inesorcsGttominlmisethe.oncent.ationcfn'kgandtherefor€rnili€al€finatial|ossihrouth
counierpa.ty s potential tailure to make paymente'

l3lUquidity.lsk
The Comcanv monilots its.isk of a shonate offunds !s n8 a liquid tY plann n3 mechanlsm'

The t€ble below suFmaris€s the matu.ityprofrle cithe Company 5 flnancialliabiiities based on c'nlradualundiscounted

Partlcu1116

as.l March 31,2024

-Irade and othcr Pat.ablgs (R€lq:.Note i2)
iOther linanrial liabrlties (R-efer Noie 13A)

Ar at March 31,2023

L tities
I other?ayables (Refer Note 121

ntialIabiliti€, (Refer Note 13-A)
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HTMusic & Entenalnmeni Company limlted
Noteg t o fina ncia l st emenrs for the ye.r ended 31st March 2024

Note zBA; teaser

Tle Conrp.rryrrr! iaken uffiLe pradiset ondef ease a rr(r ngert,e ni

ll The delails of the riEhl.of-use .sset neld ty ihe Company Is as follow':

Pqrtk0hrs
Asat Aprll01,2022
0€Fre.iatro., chiJrB€ lor tieye.r
Ba:an€€ at 3l March 2023

0aprccratrol .hargr lor the year

Balanc€ ar 3l Mar€h 2024

(1NR In Lakhs)

EulldlqF Total
437 437

(73) {73)

354 364

{71) (7r )

293 293

ill5€tour below are ihe (anyintamounts ol leate liabllitlet aod lhe movemenli dutln; lhe pe.rodi

Pa4l(ulats
Bahnc€ at l April

Pn't.nenL\ of Pr ncl9al

P€ymenE ol litere5t
B.lanaa at l1 March

lil,Amounts recosnlted In Proflt ot loss:

P3(kubri
lnterest on lease llabrItleg

D€lrecLalion sxpEfsc ol r Ehfof u5e asset5

lvlAmoints reco8n15€d In tlalement ot cashllows:

Parllcuh,s
fotdt .a5lr 0!tfbs for ler5et

Mrr.h 31" 2024
{rNR io Lafths)

March 31,1023
415 465

ljr) (io)

30) {:r)
{Il (3sl

349 4!5
Gl 32

288 384

llNR in rakhrl
lirrch 31 m?4 M.rch alr 2023

31 35

llNi In rakh5)

frt.?rb 31,2024 March 31,2023
61 4t



Dls.loi/r. r.qulr.d und.. 3.tdon 86lal ol tie comPml.r Ad, 201!

Hl Musi! .nd Ert.rtrinient (odD v tlBhed
Notlr lo t|niDald $trtcira.tr fo. th. v!!t.nd€d ltst Mrrch l0l'l

Not. 29: Dls.loi/r. r.qulr.d und.. 3.don 116l.l or tie comPm

Not. tor !t ndrfdrklu€dbul not.fie.tlY!
MrnGnyo, Corporatp Afra (,,M CA,l notrfils new statrdard .' ameodderts ro rhe qisti ng etaodatdl There ir no lur h nofint.tioo whilh wolld h.ve b€en I ppliclbl€

'lr'lRlertth!n 50 OOOI hdr be.d ro!ndedolflo N'l
. ii'J.'ii"'.i:l'j'is".i.",Ji,1.-i" i".;,j i*"",,u,r wr .-.s,"", 

"r 
rhe conoa.,ee acr rot] a.enor aoDri(abrero rhe(omDa.v

I'lore: 3l C6mhltm.nls & cohtingen(let

r.,3d ldctrEnrt d.nrnd, ,.r lNR I I rkhllprcv,ou5y..: rii l,orf'n.ncr!rr.,t1017-13t8a'ne rh!srh.th.cohP"vhtsFicltrL'd'r

Nrtr. sr*c cl mrrrge..nra*e$Fr.r r.J.u,.cr: r!!ts ofrh. r6.w m.ner, th. na.t8.m.r!irc..lentrh.tn.prov"i I req!reo 
'3

:h.nnin.rrn.r.n.6tt.ronMt'.hJr 702r

:nimit d inornxor.onrt.u t.mrLnrns !a bc ere(Jt'd 6 
"shlnc"uot 

lr 1lirlFrcvitt! Yct flil)

tll6dHrs |til'.d Nx lc|drourt.rr Irrll

c
ct)

tro.ndtrure on cbrEor are 50.D1 R6@.tlbrl t! i{sR)

o!.i reotriiedlobespe4t bY lhe cornPanv dur ns lhe vea'

(b)AmountarDrdedbvlne6oa'dtob€5D51 duri'clhevcal
AFOUnI to.nr6u.r lh. vaar on:
lir conrtu.nch /.l.oukition of .nv.lt.r
irl O. ouroqtei otier that {rl.bov€
Anolnt cdrrird foris'd tron Drtviolr vfti fo, settrh. offin the carrcn! vea'
:tc.!! nmounl eDend d!rhr thevea/.iiried lorwardrot!bs'ouent!ear

$;
?
o

nd
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ln MlCc..d ldrrt h|n nt C..Fiy U|Dlnr|
NoE b iraicll ntllrrB ir l|t. r.r sitd.d lln X-d! 2@a

:!fi.nr ritlo {ln tinGl
aurd r..ft / aor-r hrlrhttal

910 t015 -r2ta M.inly du.to Inc/..t.In cst.nl ll.bllitiB bv 17t6 ii rt|.
c!.rFl Y..t - co6p.t6t to tn. g.Rrou3 y€..

lt€bt-.quity r.t o (in trt.|l
llor.l o*v Tot:l Equltyl

roul o€tn ' 0.6t .dnpnr.t ol cln.rir
boriolinti I'n.ludina cu(.nr marurti.s of lql.
r.rD bdrMnSt, non{urhr bortu.$.nd
r.t.resl acfiu.n o. bo(owin83
rdr.l Eqdty = Shr.ltold.c' tqurry

o.bl l.rurc. .ddrg. r.ro {l^ liD6 |

{t6|104 D.Dt(r.lrd .nd .mori'rnbn
dp.@i/locbl o.y.t . dtnrnd.y..r '

R.turn on tqulty Rrlio {tal
(Lors.fta r.t/Arr{. rhr.noH€ i Equiw)

!97,'( -1095tt .lSX M.nlY due lo Cc.t er* in Iott .ll.r lar by ttx . rhe

clre.l Yaa, $compt.dtoln. tavlosr tr.t

Inv6ro.y ror.ow ..llo ltlD6)
{corl of a@{b told /wdi. tnvdto.yJ
COGI= Conot h.tar.r3 .dr!6!rt . Ch.nae5

h itrvanon.r otfin,rh.d gdd!, srrj.

k.rh rcdSt6 tlrnovi rd,o {in !h.rl r.73

lnR€iue iron opdarioot /.ecrt ttrd.
l.ol -!3r M-nlv d!. to rftt.a* In ed{. ttad. r.n!torbl6 bt

11%

rr.dG ory.br.' l!.mvd ratio {in unc'l

lohd Erp.nr6' / Avd.a.Tt.d. p.y.bl6l
' .rcludint .rlow.n.s ior b.d and doulttlr

'.(.iv.bl6/ 
.d!.n.€5 and Lor! on r.l.

tfa I 02 {2!a Mdinlv du! lo d(r?.r. n oth.r ap.i5.t bv ltr ln tn€

<ur.anr tar. a ccnor€d to ua D.tudr v!..

ld c.p(al turnover .rtio {rn limsj
lo9.r.tna Rd6!. iiM ood.rio.V wdtrina

017 0lE -5ri

llort.tr.' r.r / Ior.lrrcofr€l
1198X 45_98* .53t M.rnlvde. to dc.r.8. in lori.fter td bv 5E* and

derere'ntotrlin(o6.bv1lc ntn.cudantYeir -
con9..cd to th. pr.rlour y6t

na!.n o.' C.ohrl Ehplor.d ltai
(E.mr.s5 B.r@ I^oecsr.nd rd {Egt:) /

-a 75ta 5l'. Mnnlvd!.todacr..r.rn..Salrv.tur tlort
.uriFt v.ar.t<onp.r.d to tn. trsrooi t..t

R.tur.on inv6i6.dtrxi t..169a 6 
'29a

lrnoft. o Fr.d d.po3'te /Av.rrt. r,r.d

.50% M.mly do. to d€....*;. av.r.C. i.v6tFtrrt bt 6lx
and Cfrr. .h rn.om.lroh lnvatmel bv82*'n tn.
cuiia.t v.!r 4 (olnpten to thi ptw,out Y!a.

s.. .cconprnvrdg .oret ro ln. hn.no.l itittamanis

r.l.rmr of 4r r.ron ol d.n d.t! rnnh.d

Fo.att..dArloo.|tr

lFrd naSist .ton l,lum!.' l18901wr

for and o. b€hall olrh. ao.rd or ok!.rotr or

{Dr!{ 08381085)

\*I^l}"\\
#xQ;

#M.mb6rh'p No:M:16.I.




